





67th Annual Alturas Rotary Clubs Junior Livestock Show & Sale June 8 ~ 12, 2015

John Cummings Memorial Livestock Grounds Alturas, CA



Larrell Smith President Junior Show Board

A Message from the Junior Show Board Officer Team



Pictured L to R: Brady Deaton, Buyer's Committee Representative; Larrell Smith, President; Anna Colbert, Secretary/Treasurer and Grady Ingraham, Vice President.

Dear Exhibitors:

We are looking forward to another exciting year. Please take some time and check out the Program Handbook carefully as things have been switched around. The Carcass Contest is not being offered this year; therefore we are reducing entry fees for the market Beef, Goats, Sheep and Swine. We have split the Horse Show into two days so be sure to check the schedule for when your classes are offered.

Some of the changes for 2015:

- ❖ Livestock General Rules Rules 20, 30 & 31
- Special Classes & Awards Pen of 3 Large Market Animal Competition (See species for Class #.)
- ❖ Beef Division Rule 15
- ❖ Goat Division Rules 7 & 8
- ♦ Horse Division Rules 2, 15 & 20
- ❖ Sheep Division Rules 7 & 8
- ❖ Swine Division Rules 6 & 10

The Junior Show Board will also host a dance for our exhibitors on Thursday night in the Sale Arena.

We look forward to seeing you there!!!

The Junior Show Board Officer Team

TABLE OF CONTENTS

2015 Judges	3
Junior Show Board	4
Schedule	5
Show Rules	
General	6 ~ 7
Uniform	7
Livestock General	7 ~ 9
Entry Fees	9
2015 – Livestock Sale Order	10
Special Classes and Awards	
Modoc Bred & Raised Awards	10
Herdsmanship	10
Stall Decorating	10
Round Robin Showmanship	11
Alumni Round Robin Showmanship	11
Pen of 3 Large Market Animals	11
2015 Divisions and Classes	
Primary Division	11 ~ 12
Pee Wee Showmanship	12
Beef Division	12 ~ 14
Goat Division	14 ~ 15
Horse Division	15 ~ 18
Poultry Division	18 ~ 19
Rabbit Division	19 ~ 20
Sheep Division	21 ~ 22
Swine Division	22 ~ 23

2015 JUDGES

Beef/Swine	Natalie Sanchez	Gridley, CA
Sheep/Goat	Jaime Sanchez	Gridley, CA
Horse	Aimee Boulade	Alturas, CA
Cow/Ranch Horse	John Freeman	Alturas, CA
Trail	Onalea Sweeney	Alturas, CA
Poultry	Laura Snell	Alturas, CA
Rabbit	Bob Tapp	Chico, CA

Note: underlined items are new for 2015.

2015 JUNIOR SHOW BOARD

The Junior Show Board is responsible for organizing and conducting the Junior Livestock Show, which is sponsored by the Alturas Sunrise and Alturas Noon Rotary Clubs. The Board establishes those policies and regulations it deems necessary to ensure a safe, fun and successful Livestock Show. The Board consists of two 4-H members from each club and two FFA members from each chapter. The JLS Adult Advisor, together with the 4-H Program Representative and FFA Advisors provide the Board with leadership, supervision and professional/technical advice and assistance.



2015 Board Members (L to R): Back Row - Kristy Sphar, New Pioneer 4-H; Bayley Fee, Surprise Valley FFA; Grady Ingraham, Davis Creek 4-H; Paden Smith, Davis Creek 4-H; Chantz Albrecht, Likely Pine Burrs 4-H; Brady Deaton, New Pioneer 4-H; Anna Colbert, Likely Pine Burrs 4-H; Front Row – Sara McCoy, Providence 4-H; Destanie Withrow, Bieber 4-H; Gabby Castillo, Surprise Valley FFA; Iris Klugherz, Surprise Valley 4-H; Amanda Richno, Providence 4-H; Mackenzie McGiffin, Surprise Valley 4-H; Larrell Smith, Alturas FFA; Lane Galvin, Alturas FFA. Not pictured: Joel Torres, Likely Pine Burrs 4-H and Advisor Teri Brown. Big Valley FFA chose not to participate this year and Chantz Albrecht left after the start of the season.

You're invited ~
Exhibitor's Dance
Thursday, June 11, 2015
7:10 pm
Sale Ring

SCHEDULE

June 8-June 12, 2015

Date	Activity/Event	Time
Sunday, June 7	JLS Work Day	8:00 am
* / *	Camp Trailers Arrive	Noon
Monday, June 8	Horse Show (Showmanship, Halter, All Equitation, All Pleasure, & Trail).	8:00 am
Tuesday, June 9	Horse Show (Reining, Cow Horse, Ranch Horse, Steer Stopping & Gymkhana Classes).	8:00 am
	Poultry & Rabbit Weigh In	8:15 am
	Poultry & Rabbit Market Classes	9:00 am
	Poultry & Rabbit Breeding Classes	To Follow
	Poultry & Rabbit Showmanship	To Follow
	Primary Showmanship	1:00 pm
Wednesday, June 10	Market Animals Must Be In Their Pens	2:00 pm
Thursday, June 11	Market Swine (Sale Ring)	8:00 am
	Market Beef (Arena)	11:00 am
	Market Sheep (Sale Ring)	11:00 am
	Market Goats (Sale Ring)	To Follow
	Pee Wee Showmanship	1:00 pm
	Breeding Swine (Sale Ring)	2:00 pm
	Breeding Beef (Arena)	To Follow
	Breeding Sheep (Sale Ring)	To Follow
	Breeding Goats (Sale Ring)	To Follow
	Livestock Judging Contest	4:00 pm
Friday, June 12	Swine Showmanship (Sale Ring)	8:00 am
	Beef Showmanship (Arena)	9:00 am
	Sheep Showmanship (Sale Ring)	9:00 am
	Goat Showmanship (Sale Ring)	To Follow
	Pen of 3 Large Market Animals	To Follow
	Round Robin & Alumni Round Robin Showmanship	Noon
	Awards Ceremony (Sale Ring)	3:00 pm
	Community Barbecue	5:00 pm
	LIVESTOCK SALE	6:30 pm
	Only JLS Members, Advisors, Exhibitors and Project	6 to End of Sale
	Leaders in Swine Barn	
	All animals (other than those being shipped for	
	processing) out of their pens/pens cleaned. Stalls must be cleaned in order for stall deposit to be returned.	
Saturday, June 13	Ship Sale Animals	6 to 10 am
June 10	Only JLS Members In Barns	o to to will
	Stalls must be cleaned for deposit to be returned (Market Animal Exhibitor's may clean stalls beginning at 10 am)	<u>2:00 pm</u>

SHOW RULES

GENERAL

- 1. All participants must be a member of a Modoc County 4-H Club, or a member of the Alturas, Big Valley or Surprise Valley FFA Chapters.
- 2. 4-H and FFA members may participate in no more than one Junior Livestock Sale following graduation from high school.
- 3. There is not a special entry form for Primary 4~H or Pee Wee Showmanship. Please use the standard Junior Livestock Show Entry Form. Be sure to designate the appropriate Class Number and Section.
- 4. Exhibits are entered at the owner's risk.
- 5. In an effort to make this a family friendly event, no alcohol will be allowed on the show grounds.
- 6. In order to reduce fire hazard, smoking will be restricted to the east parking lot away from the barns and house trailers.
- 7. All 4-H and FFA members are prohibited from possessing or using alcoholic beverages or drugs, using obscene language, rough-housing, destroying property, or insubordination when on show grounds, including show rings, barns, and house trailers. Infractions as determined by a responsible adult or Junior Show Board member may result in any or all of the following penalties: disqualification of member and animal from show and sale, assessing member the cost of damages, and/or releasing member to the appropriate law enforcement agency.
- 8. Entries for all classes must be submitted to the Junior Livestock Show/4-H Office by the responsible 4-H Leader or FFA Advisor by 5:00 pm on May 7, 2015. EXHIBITORS are responsible for all errors on entry forms. Please double check to ensure that all Class numbers, Section numbers, description, JLS tag number or other identification and information as well as required signatures are provided. No changes or refunds will be issued for incorrect entry.
- 9. Every 4-H Club and FFA Chapter must include a \$50 stall deposit with their entries (a deposit must be included even if the club/chapter plans on showing only small animals) or exhibitors will not be entered. The deposit will be returned if club/chapter members:
 - a. Remove all breeding animals from Show Grounds and clean their stalls by 6 pm, Friday, June 12th.
 - b. Leave water for their market animals until Noon on Saturday, June 12th.
 - c. Clean all stalls and adjacent areas by 2:00 pm on Saturday, June 13th. Note: If you clean pens following the sale on Friday night and then leave the animals overnight for shipping, exhibitors will be expected to re-clean the stalls and remove any feed left in the mangers by 2 pm Saturday, June 13th or the club/chapter's deposit will be withheld in entirety.
 - d. Club/Chapter flower box is in its assigned location; and
 - e. The club/chapter trash can is in its assigned location and has been emptied as needed during the week of show. If trash cans are not emptied as needed, the Junior Show Board will deduct \$10.00 per day from the club or chapter deposit.
 - f. The Junior Show Board will withhold the deposit in entirety if adults are identified cleaning stalls.
- 10. Junior classes are open to exhibitors who are in the 4th & 5th grades (Ages 9-10) during the current school year. Intermediate classes are open to exhibitors who are in the 6-8th grades (Ages 11-13) during the current school year. Senior classes are open to exhibitors in the 9-12th grades (Ages 14-19) during the current school year.

- 11. Exhibitors who receive an award during the Junior Livestock Show will receive an envelope with a list of the individuals or businesses that sponsored their award when they receive their ribbon. To receive their award at the awards ceremony, exhibitors are required to bring a stamped and addressed thank you note for each award sponsor to the announcer's table by Noon Friday, June 12. In order to maintain their position in the sale order, Round Robin winners are required to bring stamped and addressed thank you notes to the announcer's table by 5:00 pm, Friday, June 12. Thank you notes (with stamped envelopes) will be available for purchase at the concession stand if needed.
- 12. Awarding of all champion ribbons and prizes will be the decision of the judges.
- 13. The Junior Show Board will decide all disputes and decisions not covered by the rules.
- 14. A 7% commission will be charged against all sale animals to support the show and sale.
- 15. Sale participants will receive a list of individuals/businesses that purchased their animal the week after the Junior Livestock Show. Participants will receive their sale check when they bring or mail a stamped/addressed thank you note to the Junior Show/4-H Office for each of their buyers and when all monies are received from their buyer(s).
- 16. In the interest of safety and to facilitate getting market animals out of the pens and into the ring for the livestock sale, only Junior Show Board members, advisors, exhibitors and their project leaders (no parents, guardians or others) will be allowed in all barns between 6:00 pm and the end of the sale (about 9 pm) on Friday, June 12, 2015.
- 17. In the interest of safety during shipping, only Junior Show Board members will be allowed in all barns between 6:00 am to 10:00 am on Saturday, <u>June 13, 2015</u>. Stall cleaning will not be allowed during this time.

UNIFORM

- 1. 4-H members will wear the following uniform during all classes, the awards ceremony, and the auction: dark blue jeans, white collared long sleeved shirt that is long enough to tuck in, 4-H tie or scarf, and 4-H hat.
- 2. FFA members will wear the following uniforms during all classes, the awards ceremony, and the auction: black pants, white shirt, FFA tie or scarf, and FFA jacket.
- 3. Horse show competitors may wear breeches in English classes in place of blue jeans. 4-H Horse Proficiency patches may be worn on member's white shirt.
- 4. Rabbit competitors may wear an apron over their uniform.

LIVESTOCK GENERAL

- 1. Livestock not properly trained, fed and groomed or those who are unhealthy or pose a safety hazard are subject to being sifted from competition and removed from the show grounds.
- 2. Barn and stall space will only be provided for the market or breeding beef, goats, sheep, and swine entered in the show.
- 3. Each exhibitor must furnish his/her own equipment and feed. Initial bedding will be provided.
- 4. Roping will only be allowed in the West (Roping) Arena, not around the show rings and barns.

- 5. Each exhibitor may have no more than two entries in each market class.
- 6. Exhibitors who enter more than one market or breeding animal in a class must find a current 4-H or FFA member to show their additional animal in advance of show day. These members must wear the appropriate uniform and be available to hold and show the animal in the champion class if necessary. Failure to secure a suitable showman/woman prior to the class will result in the animal being disqualified.
- 7. No animal may be entered in both market and breeding classes.
- 8. Members are required to do their own work with their animals and stalls. They may receive limited assistance from current members who are <u>2014</u> graduates or younger. Adults may not be in the stalls and may assist with verbal advice only. An infraction of this rule will cause members and animals to be disqualified. Junior Show Board members must be notified of an infraction in writing.
- 9. Adults may assist with the unloading and set up of tack and feed until 2:00 pm on Wednesday and after the Award Ceremony on Friday.
- 10. Each exhibitor shall show his/her animal in accordance with the schedule and may be disqualified for failure to do so.
- 11. An exhibitor may have only one Grand or Reserve Champion market animal in consideration for the show. If an exhibitor has two animals in consideration for Grand and Reserve Champion, and the judge selects one of the exhibitor's entries for Grand Champion, the exhibitor must withdraw the second animal. Grand and Reserve Champion animals must grade Group 1.
- 12. In Junior-Intermediate-Senior showmanship classes, the exhibitor's animal must be owned, fitted and shown by member.
- 13. The Junior Show Board reserves the right to divide or combine classes beyond the sections listed if deemed necessary. When there are less than 3 entries in each section of a class, the sections will be combined into a single class/section.
- 14. All animals are subject to use in the judging contest.
- 15. No exhibitor may sell at this sale who has sold at another junior livestock sale in the current calendar year with the exception of statewide shows.
- 16. To be eligible to show and sell market beef, goats, lambs and hogs, prospective exhibitors (except JLS Board members and their siblings) must have their animals tagged and recorded by a Junior Show Board Member at one of the scheduled JLS Tagging Days.
- 17. All market beef, goats, sheep and swine must be in the pens by 2:00 pm on Wednesday, <u>June 10</u>, 2015.
- 18. Market animals will be weighed only once.
- 19. Market beef, goats, sheep, and swine will be weighed beginning at 2:30 pm. Sheep will be weighed first, followed by goats, beef, and swine. Market swine will be weighed starting at approximately 4:00 pm. No washing or decorating during hog weigh-in.
- 20. Only exhibitors and Junior Show Board members are allowed in the barns (All Barns) during weigh-in. No parents, guests, public, FFA Advisor's, or 4-H Project Leaders will be allowed.

- 21. To be eligible for sale, market beef, goats, sheep and swine must grade Market Ready. Meat birds and rabbits must grade Group 2 or above.
- 22. Photos must be taken immediately following market classes. If a member fails to have their photo taken for their buyer's card, their check will be held until a photo is provided to the Modoc 4-H Office.
- 23. Sale order will be determined by the judge's placing all sale animals in rank of grade.
- 24. For exhibitors with more than one market entry, the highest placing animal will be entered in the sale order, unless the Modoc 4-H Office is notified in writing by the exhibitor by 5:00 pm on Thursday, June 11, 2015.
- 25. Non-sale animals may be removed after the last market class on Thursday.
- 26. Exhibitors who wish to ship non-sale animals to slaughterhouses on Saturday must complete the necessary paperwork at the Farm Advisor's Office by 5:00 pm on Thursday, June 11, 2015. If paperwork is not completed by that deadline, the animal will not be shipped and will not be the responsibility of the Junior Show Board.
- 27. To be eligible to sell, every 4-H and FFA member must participate in a showmanship class.
- 28. Each exhibitor may sell only one animal at the Modoc County Junior Livestock Sale per year.
- 29. No drugged animals may go through the sale. USDA meat inspectors sample show animals for residues of antibiotics, sedatives and tranquilizers. Sellers of condemned carcasses must return the payment or replace the carcass and are liable for triple civil damages and fines.
- 30. First Place Showmen, in consideration for Round Robin Showmanship, have thirty (30) minutes to turn in the signed participation contract to the Announcer's table to ensure a spot for the Round Robin competition. In the event that the first place showman does not wish to compete or misses the deadline the second place showman will be given a chance to compete.
- 31. <u>Use of animals for the Round Robin Showmanship will be at the discretion of the Junior Show</u> Board.

ENTRY FEES

Entry fees are as follows:

a. Horse \$2.50 per Class

b. Poultry \$5.00 per Market Class/Animal (Pen of 2 Chickens or

Single Chicken or Turkey)

\$.50 per Breeding Class/Animal

c. Rabbit \$5.00 per Market Class/Animal (Pen of 3 & Single

Fryer)

\$.50 per Breeding & Fur Class/Animal

d. Beef, Sheep, Swine & Goat \$5.00 per Market Class/Animal

\$2.50 per Breeding Class/Animal

\$5.00 per Participant ~ Pen of 3 Large Market Animals Class

\$5.00 per Feeder Class/Animal

e. Showmanship No Charge

2015 SALE ORDER

Animals will be sold in the following order for 2015: Rabbits, Poultry, Beef, Sheep, Goats and Swine.

SPECIAL CLASSES AND AWARDS

MODOC BRED & RAISED AWARDS

This award is for the highest placing market beef, goat, sheep and swine entry that is Modoc Bred & Raised. Please note the following:

- 1. **Section 1** is for market animals born and raised on an operation headquartered in Modoc County (which may also encompass bordering property in Lake County, OR; Lassen County, CA; and Washoe County, NV). Following judging of each weight class/market animal division, all the Modoc Bred & Raised market animals will be brought back into the ring and re-judged to better highlight/focus attention on our local livestock industry.
- 2. **Section 2** is for market animals born and raised by a livestock operation outside of Modoc County.

HERDSMANSHIP

This contest is designed to encourage members to arrange and keep their stalls and livestock attractive and clean. Pens and livestock are subject to examination by the judges at any time during the show. All work is to be done by the members.

SCORE CALCULATIONS

Pens & Stalls: Clean Bedding

Stalls Clearly Labeled Water Buckets Filled

Feed Available 35 Points
Animals: Clean Condition 25 Points
Exhibitors: Courteous, Neat, On Duty 25 Points
Equipment: Stored Neatly 15 Points
TOTAL 100 Points

Please Note: if flower boxes are placed in the wrong place, 5 points will be deducted from your club or chapter's Herdsmanship score.

STALL DECORATING

Please note: Christmas lights may not be used to decorate stalls.

SCORE CALCULATIONS

Originality 5 Points
Creativity 5 Points
Interesting, Informative & Educational Displays
TOTAL 5 Points
15 Points

ROUND ROBIN SHOWMANSHIP

Only first place showman and the animal shown in his/her showmanship class may compete in Round Robin Showmanship. If an individual has won first place in more than one showmanship class, he/she will select the class he/she wishes to represent in the Round Robin. In the other class in which he/she won, the second place showman and his/her animal will represent the class in Round Robin.

In the Junior, Intermediate, and Senior Round Robin Showmanship classes, each participant will show horse, chicken, turkey, rabbit, beef, goat, sheep and swine. The winner is to be determined by his/her ability to show all species. Judging in all Round Robin Showmanship divisions will begin at Noon.

In the event of a tie in the Junior, Intermediate, or Senior divisions, the member with the highest placing in the rabbit class will be the winner.

ALUMNI ROUND ROBIN SHOWMANSHIP

Alumni (Adult) Round Robin is open to anyone 18 years and older who is not participating in the Senior Division. The Alumni Round Robin will be held in conjunction with the Youth Round Robin Showmanship competition. Alumni will be asked to show horse, beef, goat, sheep and swine (i.e., alumni will **not** show rabbits or poultry).

Alumni may enter the Alumni Round Robin between Monday at 8 am and Friday at 10 am at the announcer's booth. No entries will be accepted after 10 am on Friday. An entry fee of <u>\$5</u> per alumni must be paid at the time of entry. In the event of a tie in the Alumni Round Robin, the participant with the highest placing in the goat class will be the winner.

Pen of 3 Large Market Animals Competition

- 1. Pens of three will consist of three market animals of a single species entered from any FFA Chapter or 4-H Club. Class divisions are listed per species. Animals may only be entered in one (1) pen of three class.
- 2. Animals chosen for the pen of three must be taken from those shown by members of that particular FFA Chapter or 4-H Club.
- 3. Official Judges will be those listed per species in the Judges section. Groups will be judged after the Goat Showmanship class on Friday, June 12. Species will show in the following order: Pen of 3 Beef, Pen of 3 Sheep, Pen of 3 Swine and Pen of 3 Goats.
- 4. Winners will receive 1st place rosettes.

2015 DIVISIONS AND CLASSES

PRIMARY 4~H DIVISION

Open to all Primary 4-H members (5 to 8 years old or Kindergarten to 3rd grade) of a Modoc County 4-H Leader's Council 4-H Club.

PRIMARY 4~H DIVISION CLASSES:

CLASS 1 Primary 4~H*

Sec 1 Poultry Showmanship Sec 2 Rabbit Showmanship

PEE WEE SHOWMANSHIP

The Pee Wee Showmanship Class is open to boys and girls in Kindergarten through 3rd grade, as of January 1 of the current year. Youth must reside in an area served by a Modoc County 4-H Club. Animals to be shown by children may include pygmy goats, dogs, cats, rats, mice, cavies, poultry and rabbits. All animals will be shown together. The animals must have been trained by the exhibitor and may NOT be entered in any other division of the Junior Livestock Show. Animals entered in this class are to be brought to the grounds shortly before showing and removed soon after.

PEE WEE SHOWMANSHIP CLASSES:

CLASS 2 PEE WEE SHOWMANSHIP*
Sec 1 Kindergarten & 1st Graders

Sec 2 2nd & 3rd Graders

* See General Livestock Rules (Item #3).

BEEF DIVISION

- 1. Market beef steer or heifer not over 20 months of age when shown and in exhibitor's possession and on feed 120 days prior to the opening date of show, and identified with a JLS tag.
- 2. Market beef minimum weight for market beef is 1000 pounds and exhibitors will not be paid for more than 1300 pounds.
- 3. Market beef will be graded and ribbons awarded as indicated.

MARKET READY Market steers projected to have sufficient fat deposition to meet the marbling

specifications for USDA Prime, Choice or Select + quality grades are eligible to sell. Market ready animals will be broken down into Group 1 (Blue Ribbon) and Group 2 (Red Ribbon) by the judge based on quality of the

animals for sale purposes only.

NOT MKT. READY Market steers lacking evidence of sufficient fat deposition to produce a

desirable consumer product. Steers projected to grade USDA Select Minus or

lower are not eligible to sell (White Ribbon.)

- 4. Feeder beef class—open to all market beef weighing **700 to 999** pounds. Animals not originally intended for sale at the Junior Livestock Show need not be tagged. Animals originally intended for sale at the Junior Livestock Show that did not make weight can enter the feeder class Wednesday evening after weigh-in is complete. Entry fee will be required at that time.
- 5. All beef cattle are required to be tied with safety/neck ropes in addition to their halter whenever stalled.

^{*}See General Livestock Rules (Item #3).

- 6. Exhibitors of all breeding animals must own their animal(s) at least 60 days prior to the show or be the breeder of the animal.
- 7. Breeding animals may arrive and leave the day they are to be shown.
- 8. Registered and grade breeding animals will be shown in the same class. The top two animals in each section of a class will compete for Champion and Reserve Champion breeding animal.
- 9. Nose rings or nose tongs will not be allowed for market, feeder or breeding beef with the exception of bulls 8 months of age and older. All bulls 8 months of age or older at the beginning of show will be required to have a permanent nose ring in place prior to arrival at the show grounds.
- 10. Horns may be no longer than 4 inches.
- 11. Yellow slips are required at weigh in for all market beef.
- 12. Bulls will only be allowed on the grounds on Thursday.
- 13. All females 12 months of age at the beginning of show must have been Brucellosis vaccinated, evidenced by a Brucellosis tag and/or legible tattoo.
- 14. All females 24 months of age at the beginning of show must have a calf at side.
- 15. <u>Animals will be allowed to be decorated for the sale but must be cleaned by the exhibitor before the animal is shipped or exhibitor will be charged a fine of 15% of their sale amount.</u>
- 16. Beef halters and neck ropes may be picked up at 10:00 am on Saturday, June 13, 2015 or at the Junior Livestock Show/4-H Office until July 1st.

BEEF DIVISION CLASSES:

CLASS 4	MARKET BEEF	
Sec 1	Modoc Bred & Raised	l Market Beef
Sec 2	Market Beef Bred Ou	tside Modoc County
Sec 3		(Please list other Participants also).
CLASS 5	FEEDER BEEF	
Sec 1	Feeder Beef	
CLASS 6	BRED & OWNED BU	<u>LLS</u>
Sec 1	Calf	09-01-14 thru 02-18-15
Sec 2	Yearling	03-01-13 thru 08-31-14
CLASS 7	BREEDING FEMALES	
Sec 1	Calf	09-01-14 thru 02-18-15
Sec 2	Jr. & Sr. Yearling	03-01-13 thru 04-30-14
Sec 3	Summer Yearling	05-01-14 thru 08-31-14
CLASS 8	COW & CALF PAIRS	
Sec 1	Calf Born	09-01-2014 thru 12-31-2014
Sec 2	Calf Born	01-01-2015 thru 05-09-2015

<u>CLASS 9</u> <u>SHOWMANSHIP</u>

Sec 1 Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

GOAT DIVISION

- 1. Market goat—wether or doe not over 12 months of age when shown and in the exhibitor's possession and on feed 60 days prior to opening date of show, and identified with a JLS tag.
- 2. Market goat—minimum weight is **65** pounds and exhibitors will not be paid for more than **125** pounds.
- 3. Market goats showing broken or yearling teeth will be disqualified.
- 4. All goats must be dehorned or have their horns filed down with no point.
- 5. Market goats will be graded and ribbons awarded as indicated.

MARKET READY USDA Prime or Choice quality with 12th rib back fat range .08 to

.12 most desirable, .13 to .22 back fat acceptable, average or greater conformation and cut ability are eligible to sell. Market ready animals will be broken down into Group 1 (Blue Ribbon) and Group 2 (Red Ribbon) by the judge based on quality of the animals

for sale purposes only.

NOT MKT. READY Good or lower quality grade with 12th rib back fat range <.08 or

>.22; under-finished goats grading USDA Good or lower, below average conformation or cut-ability are not eligible to sell (White

Ribbon.)

- 6. Feeder goat class—open to all market goats weighing **35 to 64** pounds. Animals not originally intended for sale at the Junior Livestock Show need not be tagged. Animals originally intended for sale at the Junior Livestock Show that did not make weight can enter the feeder class Wednesday evening after weigh in is complete. Entry fee will be required at that time.
- 7. All goats require individual identification. The official identification may be official USDA individual identification ear tags, Scrapies Flock Certification Program ear tags, or registration tattoos if accompanied by registration papers. Scrapies tag or number, along with registration certificate indicating Scrapie number, must accompany market animal at the time of JLS tagging or the animal will not be tagged. Breeding goats will be checked Thursday prior to the first breeding goat class.
- 8. Animals will be allowed to be decorated for the sale but must be cleaned by the exhibitor before the animal is shipped or exhibitor will be charged a fine of 15% of their sale amount.
- 9. Exhibitors of all breeding animals must own their animal(s) at least 60 days prior to the show or be the breeder of the animal.
- 10. Breeding animals may arrive and leave the day they are to be shown.
- 11. Registered and grade breeding animals will be shown in the same class. The top two animals in each section of a class will compete for Champion and Reserve Champion breeding animal.

GOAT DIVISION CLASSES:

CLASS 10	MARKET GOATS	
Sec 1	Modoc Bred & Raised Marke	et Goat
Sec 2	Market Goat Bred Outside N	Modoc County
Sec 3		se list other Participants also).
		*
CLASS 11	FEEDER GOATS	
Sec 1	Feeder Goats	
CLASS 12	DAIRY BREEDING GOATS	
Sec 1	Doelings	Less than 1 year of age.
Sec 2	Yearlings	13 to 24 months of age.
Sec 3	Senior Doe	25 months and older
Sec 4	Doe & Offspring	
	1 0	
CLASS 13	MEAT BREEDING GOATS	
Sec 1	Doelings	Less than 1 year of age.
Sec 2	Yearlings	13 to 24 months of age.
Sec 3	Senior Doe	25 months and older.
Sec 4	Doe & Offspring	
CLASS 14	<u>SHOWMANSHIP</u>	
Sec 1	Senior	
Sec 2	Intermediate	
Sec 3	Junior	
	J *******	

HORSE DIVISION

- 1. Exhibitors of all horses must have owned or worked with the horse shown at least 120 days prior to the show. The leader's signature on the entry form is taken as proof.
- 2. Exhibitor's will be allowed to have assistance (from a person of their choosing) tacking-up but must perform their own grooming duties.
- 3. ASTM approved helmets with chin straps secured are required for anyone on a horse in or out of the arena during the entire show.
- 4. All riders must bring their helmet to registration to be checked. If the helmet is not ASTM certified, the rider will not be allowed to show.
- 5. Riders will be disqualified for cruel or inhumane treatment of their horse as determined by the Junior Show Board.
- 6. Horse patterns will be posted. No demonstrations will be allowed.
- 7. In showmanship classes, use of a chain chin piece on lead rope is allowed at the judge's discretion.
- 8. Class #20, Section #1 (Western Equitation Walk-Trot) is open to first and second year horse project members only. Members who enter this class are also allowed to enter showmanship and halter classes. They cannot enter regular English, bareback, western, cow horse, or gymkhana classes.
- 9. In western classes a hackamore, curb, snaffle, half-breed, or spade bit is permissible. However, horses must be shown in what is appropriate for their age.

- 10. Chain chin straps are permissible but must be at least one-half inch in width, and must lie flat against the jaw of the horse. No wire chin straps regardless of how padded or covered. No chin straps narrower than one-half inch will be allowed.
- 11. Martingales, nosebands, and tie-downs are prohibited in performance and cow horse classes.
- 12. In the Working Cow Horse class, exhibitors will call for their cow and box it until whistled off by the judge. No dry work.
- 13. In the Ranch Horse class, exhibitors will call for their cow, box it at the end of the arena, turn it both ways on the fence, and pen it. After releasing the cow from the pen, the rider will rope it around the neck, dally, stop cow, and face up. Cow must be dallied and faced up within 2 ½ minute time limit. There is no limit on the amount of loops used.
- 14. Tie-downs are allowed in gymkhana classes only.
- 15. Exhibitors will have two minutes after the third call to get to the gate before the gate closes.
- 16. Gymkhana riders have one minute to enter the arena and start their pattern after their name has been announced. Failure to do so will result in disqualification.
- 17. All-Around High Point Horse Show Exhibitor awards will be given to the Junior, Intermediate and Senior exhibitors with the highest average number of points earned in the qualifying classes. Points in each qualifying class will be awarded as follows: First Place 5 Points, 2nd Place 4 Points, 3rd Place 3 Points, 4th Place 2 Points, Fifth Place 1 Point.
- 18. In the event of a tie, the high point winner will be determined based on the exhibitor with the most first place wins.
- 19. Exhibitors in horse showmanship must show the horse in at least one other class at the Junior Livestock Show.
- 20. Exhibitor's using horse stalls must indicate the need of a stall by filling out a Horse Stall Application and submitting it with your entry form. Stalls will be given on a first come first served basis. Stalls must be cleaned upon removal of horse from the show. Horses are to be removed from the show grounds by 4:00 pm on Friday of the show.

HORSE DIVISION CLASSES:

EAST ARENA ~ MONDAY

CLASS 15	SHOWMANSHIP***
Sec 1	Senior
Sec 2	Intermediate
Sec 3	Junior
CLASS 16	HALTER***
Sec 1	Mares, 3 & Under
Sec 2	Mares, 4 & Over
Sec 3	Geldings, 3 & Under
Sec 4	Geldings, 4 & Over
CLASS 17	BAREBACK EQUITATION**
Sec 1	Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

CLASS 18 ENGLISH EQUITATION

Sec 1 Open

CLASS 19 ENGLISH PLEASURE

Sec 1 Open

CLASS 20 WESTERN EQUITATION***

Sec 1 Walk—Trot (See Horse Rule #8)

Sec 2 Senior

Sec 3 Intermediate

Sec 4 Junior

CLASS 21 WESTERN PLEASURE***

Sec 1 Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

COMPLETE AT WILL – WEST ARENA ~ MONDAY

CLASS 22 TRAIL*** (Complete at-will between 10:00 am and 12:00 pm)

Sec 1 Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

WEST ARENA ~ TUESDAY

CLASS 23 REINING

Sec 1 Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

CLASS 24 WORKING COW HORSE

Sec 1 Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

CLASS 25 RANCH HORSE

Sec 1 Open

CLASS 26 STEER STOPPING

Sec 1 Open

CLASS 27 BARRELS

Sec 1 Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

CLASS 28 POLE BENDING

Sec 1 Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

CLASS 29 SINGLE STAKE RACE

Sec 1 Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

CLASS 30 KEYHOLE RACE

Sec 1 Senior

Sec 2 Intermediate

Sec 3 Junior

CLASS 31 EGG IN SPOON

Sec 1 Open

Note: Exhibitors who enter classes marked with a *** and place 1st through 5th in a qualifying class will earn points toward the All-Around High-Point Horse Show Exhibitor Award. See Rules 17 and 18.

POULTRY DIVISION ONE DAY, CARRY-CAGE SHOW

- 1. Meat Chicken ~ Cornish X cockerel or pullet not over 12 weeks of age when shown and in exhibitor's possession and on feed 35 days prior to the opening date of show.
- 2. Meat Chicken minimum weight for meat chickens is **4** pounds each and exhibitors will not be paid for more than **8** pounds each.
- 3. Meat Turkey not over 20 weeks of age when shown and in exhibitor's possession and on feed 35 days prior to the opening date of show.
- 4. Meat Turkey (Hen) minimum weight for meat turkey hens is 12 pounds and exhibitors will not be paid for more than 16 pounds.
- 5. Meat Turkey (Tom) ~ minimum weight for meat turkey toms is **20** pounds and exhibitors will not be paid for more than **30** pounds.
- 6. All meat poultry (chickens or turkeys) must be weighed.
- 7. Turkeys may be de-beaked, de-toed, or subjected to any practice generally accepted in the commercial production of meat turkeys.
- 8. All sale poultry to be processed for delivery to buyer will be the sole responsibility of the seller.
- 9. Meat birds will be graded and ribbons awarded as indicated.

a. GROUP 1 Fancy
b. GROUP 2 Choice
c. GROUP 3 Good
BLUE RIBBON
RED RIBBON
WHITE RIBBON

POULTRY DIVISION CLASSES:

CLASS 32	MEAT BIRDS*
Sec 1	Modoc Bred & Raised Meat Pen (2 Chickens)
Sec 2	Meat Pen Bred Outside Modoc County (2 Chickens)
Sec 3	Modoc Bred & Raised Single Tom or Hen Turkey
Sec 4	Single Tom or Hen Turkey Bred Outside Modoc County
CLASS 33	BREEDING POULTRY
Sec 1	Pen of 2 Bantam Chickens (Under 1 Year)
Sec 2	Pen of 2 Bantam Chickens (Over 1 Year)
Sec 3	Single Large Breed Chicken (Under 1 Year)
Sec 4	Single Large Breed Chicken (Over 1 Year)
Sec 5	Single Hen Turkey (Under 1 Year)
Sec 6	Single Hen Turkey (Over 1 Year)
Sec 7	Single Tom Turkey (Under 1 Year)
Sec 8	Single Tom Turkey (Over 1 Year)
CLASS 34	POULTRY SHOWMANSHIP
Sec 1	Senior
Sec 2	Junior
Sec 3	Intermediate

POULTRY SHOWMANSHIP SCORE CARD:

Showman		
Personal Appe	arance	5
Poise		5
Speaking Abili	ty	5
Bird		
Grooming		10
Condition		10
Handling Bird In & Ou	it Of Cage	5
Walking Bird	-	5
Poising Bird		<u>5</u>
-	TOTAL POINTS	50

RABBIT DIVISION

- 1. All rabbits must be properly penned. All rabbits must have an ear tattoo.
- 2. Meat Rabbits—must not be more than 84 days old and be in the exhibitor's possession and on feed 35 days prior to the opening date of show.
- 3. Meat Rabbits—must weigh at least 3 pounds each and exhibitors will not be paid for more than 6 pounds each.
- 4. All meat rabbits must be weighed.
- 5. Meat rabbits will be graded and ribbons awarded as indicated.

GROUP 1	Fancy	BLUE RIBBON
GROUP 2	Choice	RED RIBBON
GROUP 3	Good	WHITE RIBBON

6. All sale rabbits to be processed for delivery to buyer will be the sole responsibility of the seller.

RABBIT DIVISION CLASSES:

CLASS 35 Sec 1 Sec 2	MEAT RABBITS* ~~ PEN OF 3* Modoc Bred & Raised Meat Rabbits (Pen of 3 ~ all one breed & color) Meat Rabbits Bred Outside Modoc County (Pen of 3 ~ all one breed & color)
CLASS 36 Sec 1 Sec 2	MEAT RABBITS – SINGLE FRYER* Modoc Bred & Raised Single Fryer Meat Rabbit Single Fryer Meat Rabbit Bred Outside Modoc County
CLASS 37 Sec 1 Sec 2 Sec 3 Sec 4	BREED CLASSES* Large Breeds – Bucks Large Breeds – Does Small Breeds – Bucks Small Breeds – Does

* Breed Classes are offered according to ARBA Standards. Please complete your entry form as such. (Note: Examples of large breeds are Californians or Rex's. An example of a small breed is a Lop.)

<u>CLASS 38</u>	<u>FUR</u>
Sec 1	Large Breeds – Bucks
Sec 2	Large Breeds – Does
Sec 3	Small Breeds – Bucks
Sec 4	Small Breeds – Does
CLASS 39	SHOWMANSHIP
Sec 1	Senior
Sec 2	Junior
Sec 3	Intermediate

RABBIT SHOWMANSHIP SCORE CARD:

Exhibitor's Appearance & Attitude	15
Grooming & Condition of Rabbit/Introduction	15
Routine: (Any order, smooth sequence)	
Carrying Rabbit	5
Type (Front, Left or Right Side, Rear)	5
Rear Hocks	5
Abdominal & Neck Check	5
Front Legs & Nails	5
Rear Legs & Nails	5
Sexing	5
Head (Teeth, Eyes, Nose)	5
Ears (Tattoo, Ear Mites, Canker, Cuts, Ears Up & Together)	5
Fur (Proper Type According To Breed, Condition)	5
Rabbit Properly Placed under Exhibitor's Arm/Conclusion	5
Did the exhibitor speak clearly, loud enough?	10
Knowledge of subject	<u>5</u>
TOTAL POINTS	100

SHEEP DIVISION

- 1. Market lamb-wether or ewe lamb not over 12 months of age when shown and in exhibitor's possession and on feed 60 days prior to the opening date of show and identified with a JLS tag.
- 2. Market lamb—minimum weight for lambs is **110** pounds and exhibitors will not be paid for more than **150** pounds.
- 3. Market lambs will be graded and ribbons awarded as indicated.

MARKET READY USDA Prime or Choice quality grade lambs with 12th rib back fat range of

.16 to .35 inch and average or better conformation and cut ability are eligible to sell. Market ready animals will be broken down into Group 1 (Blue Ribbon) and Group 2 (Red Ribbon) by the judge based on quality of the

animals for sale purposes only.

NOT MKT. READY USDA Good or lower quality grade lambs with 12th rib back fat range of

<.16 or >.35 inch; under finished lambs grading USDA Good or lower; or lambs with below-average conformation or cut ability are not eligible to sell

(White Ribbon.)

- 4. Lambs may not carry more than one inch of stretched fleece at any point on their bodies at weigh in. It is recommended that lambs be sheared after May 1st.
- 5. Callipyge lambs (heavy muscled) cannot be part of the sale and will be sifted.
- 6. Feeder lamb class—open to all market lambs weighing <u>80 to 109</u> pounds. Animals not originally intended for sale at the Junior Livestock Show need not be tagged. Animals originally intended for sale at the Junior Livestock Show that did not make weight can enter the feeder class Wednesday evening after weigh in is complete. Entry fee will be required at that time.
- 7. All sheep require individual identification. The official identification may be official USDA individual identification ear tags, Scrapies Flock Certification Program ear tags, or registration tattoos if accompanied by registration papers. Scrapies tag or number, along with registration certificate indicating Scrapie number, must accompany market animal at the time of JLS tagging or animal will not be tagged. Breeding sheep will be checked Thursday prior to the first breeding sheep class.
- 8. Animals will be allowed to be decorated for the sale but must be cleaned by the exhibitor before the animal is shipped or exhibitor will be charged a fine of 15% of their sale amount.
- 9. Exhibitors of all breeding animals must own their animal(s) at least 60 days prior to the show or be the breeder of the animal.
- 10. Breeding animals may arrive and leave the day they are to be shown.
- 11. Registered and grade breeding animals will be shown in the same class. The top two animals in each section of a class will compete for Champion and Reserve Champion breeding animal.

SHEEP DIVISION CLASSES:

CLASS 40 MARKET LAMBS

Sec 1 Sec 2 Sec 3		ed Market Lambs Outside Modoc County nbs (Please list other Participants also).
CLASS 41 Sec 1	<u>FEEDER LAMBS</u> Feeder Lambs	
CLASS 42 Sec 1 Sec 2 Sec 3 Sec 4 Sec 5	BREEDING SHEEP Ewe Lamb Yearling Ram Lamb Yearling Ram Ewe & Offspring	09-01-2014 thru 04-10-2015 09-01-2013 thru 08-31-2014 09-01-2014 thru 04-10-2015 09-01-2013 thru 08-31-2014
CLASS 43	SHEEP SHOWMANS	<u>SHIP</u>

SWINE DIVISION

- 1. Market swine—barrow or gilt not over 12 months of age and in the exhibitor's possession and on feed 60 days prior to the opening date of show and identified with a JLS tag.
- 2. Market swine—minimum weight is **205** pounds and exhibitors will not be paid for more than **280** pounds.
- 3. Market swine will be graded and ribbons awarded as indicated.

Senior

Junior

Intermediate

Sec 1 Sec 2

Sec 3

MARKET READY	US No 1 and No 2 market swine of average or greater conformation and acceptable in leanness, muscularity and production traits are eligible to sell. Market ready animals will be broken down into Group 1 (Blue Ribbon) and Group 2 (Red Ribbon) by the judge based on quality of the animals for sale purposes only.
NOT MET DEADY	Any modest environ of helper environ conformation in duction 116 No. 2. No. 4.

NOT MKT. READY Any market swine of below average conformation including US No 3, No 4 and utility grade animals are not eligible to sell (White Ribbon.)

- 4. Feeder swine class—open to all market swine weighing **65 to 204** pounds. Animals not originally intended for sale at the Junior Livestock Show do not need to be tagged. Animals that do not make weight can enter the feeder class Wednesday evening after weigh in is complete. Entry fee must be paid at that time.
- 5. It is the exhibitor's decision to clip a market hog to improve its appearance for showmanship. If an exhibitor elects to clip his/her hog, current market guidelines suggest leaving the hair at least ½ inch in length to facilitate processing.
- 6. <u>Animals will be allowed to be decorated for the sale but must be cleaned by the exhibitor before the</u> animal is shipped or exhibitor will be charged a fine of 15% of their sale amount.
- 7. Exhibitors of all breeding animals must own their animals(s) at least 60 days prior to the show or be

the breeder of the animal.

- 8. Breeding animals may arrive and leave the day they are to be shown.
- 9. Registered and grade breeding animals will be shown in the same class. The top animals in each section of a class will compete for Champion and Reserve Champion breeding animal.
- 10. All swine breeding projects are to arrive and leave on Thursday after breeding classes. They are to remain housed in trailers while not in the show ring; this is to avoid any transmission of disease to your breeding project.

SWINE DIVISION CLASSES:

Senior

Junior

Intermediate

Sec 1 Sec 2

Sec 3

CLASS 44 Sec 1 Sec 2 Sec 3	MARKET SWINE Modoc Bred & Raised Market Swine Market Swine Bred Outside Modoc County Pen of 3 Market Swine (Please list other Participants also).	
CLASS 45 Sec 1	FEEDER SWINE Feeder Swine	
CLASS 46 Sec 1 Sec 2 Sec 3 Sec 5	BREEDING SWINE Junior Gilt 6 to 12 months of age. Senior Gilt Over 12 months of age. Breeding Sow(Open) All ages. Sow & Offspring	
CLASS 47	SWINE SHOWMANSHIP	

Please remember:

- Entry forms are due in the Junior Show/4-H Office by WEDNESDAY, MAY 7, 2015 by 5 pm. Double-check your entry form. Be sure it correctly lists the Class and Section Number, a description, and the JLS tag number or other identification number. Also make sure all the required signatures have been obtained.
- If you win an award at the show, you are required to provide stamped and addressed thank you note(s) to each individual or business that sponsored your award. These are due at the announcer's table by Noon, Friday, June 12. (See General Livestock Rule 11 for more information).

